
 

 

 

Janie Berry 
Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services 
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 01629 538357 
Direct Dial  
Ask for Danny 
Sunderland 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee 
 
 
 

Date Not Specified 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Appointments and Conditions of 
Service Committee to be held at 4.00 pm on Monday, 24 June 2019 in 
Committee Room 3, County Hall, Matlock, the agenda for which is set out 
below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
JANIE BERRY 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services  
 
A G E N D A 
 
1.   To receive apologies for absence  

 
2.   To receive declarations of interest (if any)  

 
3.   Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee terms of reference - 

verbal update  
 

4.   Appointments Panel Process for Officers of the Council covered by the 
Council's Constitution (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

5.   Executive Director Performance Appraisal (Pages 3 - 12) 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
6.   Application for the payment of a Market Supplement to Children's Services 

Child Protection Social Workers (Pages 13 - 36) 
 

 



 Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee 

24 June 2019 

Report of the Director of Organisation Development and Policy 

Appointments Panel Process for Officers of the Council covered by the 

Councils Constitution 

 

1. Purpose 

This report outlines a process for the formation of an appointments panel for 

appointments to Executive Director and Director (exc. Director of Public Health) for 

consideration and approval by the Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee 

(ACOS).  

2. Background Information 

As outlined in the Councils Constitution, ACOS is responsible for the appointments of 

officers as detailed in Appendix 9 of the Constitution.  

A Panel formed from ACOS will appoint the following:  

 

- The Head of Paid Service. 

- Statutory chief officers within the meaning of section 2(6) of the 1989 Act 

(politically restricted posts). 

- Non-statutory chief officers within the meaning of section 2(7) of the 1989 Act; 

- Deputy chief officers within the meaning of section 2(8) of the 1989 Act. 

- Any person appointed in pursuance of section 9 of the 1989 Act (assistants for 

political groups). 

 

This process excludes appointments to the Director of Public Health which is subject 

to the process set out in the Councils constitution in Appendix 9  

 

The Panel must include at least one member of the Cabinet.  

 

The composition of the Panel will be formed in consultation with the Director of 

Organisation Development and Policy; or by the Head of Paid Service if the 

appointment is of the Director of Organisation Development and Policy.  

 

3. Appointment Panel Process 

 

a. Where the Council proposes to appoint an Executive Director or Director, 

the Leader of the Council will be requested to form a panel consisting of: 

i. Two members of the majority political group (at least one member 

from Cabinet).  

ii. A member of the minority political group.  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



b. Once panel members have been identified, Democratic Services will 

arrange a sub-committee of ACOS and due process will follow.  

 

c. For appointments to positions of Executive Director, the Director of 

Organisation Development and Policy will attend the panel.  

 

d. For appointments to positions of Director, the respective Executive Director 

and Director of Organisation Development and Policy (or a nominated 

representative) will attend the panel.  

 

e. For appointments to the position of Director Organisation Development and 

Policy, the Head of Paid Service will attend the panel.  

 

f. The Director of Organisation Development and Policy will, on conclusion of 

the interview process, before an appointment is confirmed, notify the 

Cabinet of the proposed appointment and ask Cabinet Members to respond 

within 5 working days whether there are any well –founded objections to the 

appointment.   

 

g. It is a requirement that Full Council approve the appointment of the Head of 

Paid Service, Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer and Executive 

Directors following the recommendation of such an appointment by the 

Panel. The Full Council may only make or approve the appointments where 

no well-founded objection from any member of the Cabinet has been 

received.  In order to enable the appointment to progress expediently, the 

confirmation of the appointment may, in certain circumstances, be 

presented to Council for ratification at a subsequent meeting following the 

appointment being made.  

 

4. Considerations 

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been considered: 

financial, legal, the Council’s Constitution, human resources, social care and equality 

and diversity. 

5. Officer Recommendations 

The Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee (ACOS) approves the 

appointment panel process in accordance with the Constitution.  

 
Emma Crapper 

 
Director Organisation Development and Policy 

 

Page 2



PUBLIC           

Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee 

24 June 2019 

Report of the Director of Organisation Development and Policy 

Executive Director Performance Appraisal  

 

1. Purpose of the report 

 

To notify the Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee (ACOS) of 

the Executive Director Performance Appraisal Process. 

 

2. Background Information 

 

It is a contractual obligation on both the Executive Director and the employing 
council to engage in a regular process of appraisal.  The focus of this process 
should be on clarifying what the Executive Director is expected to achieve and 
deliver in their role, whilst identifying any continuing developmental needs which, 
if met, would maintain a high level of performance.  The process should also 
consider the application of the collective officer leadership operating model for 
the Council.   
 
The responsibility for appraising the Executive Director lies with the Leader of 
the Council utilising independent external advice.  The ACOS committee’s role 
is to ensure that the Leader of the Council is undertaking effective performance 
monitoring of the Executive Directors. The detailed content of appraisal 
interviews will be treated as confidential to the participants, unless both parties 
agree that it would be helpful for the objectives agreed for the ensuing period to 
be shared more widely.  The appraisal process being adopted is attached at 
Appendix 1. 
 
A report will be presented annually by the Director of Organisation Development 
and Policy to a meeting of the ACOS committee confirming that the appraisal 
process has been completed. 
 
Executive Directors and the Leader of the Council have been engaged in the 
development of this process, facilitated by the Director of Organisation 
Development and Policy. 

 
3. Other Considerations 

 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: financial, legal, the Council’s constitution, human resources, social 
care and equality and diversity. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 
4. Officer Recommendation 

 
The Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee (ACOS) notes the 
Executive Director appraisal Process as set out in Appendix 1. 
 

 
Emma Crapper 

Director of Organisation Development and Policy 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 4



PUBLIC 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
APPRAISAL PROCESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                     June 2019 

Page 5



PUBLIC 
 

2 
 

Version History 
Version Date Detail Author 
1.0 24/01/19 First draft Emma Crapper 

2.0 28/01/19 Comments received from Janie 
Berry and incorporated into 
document 

Emma Crapper 

3.0 17/05/19 Updated following comments 
received from Barry Lewis and 
Emma Alexander 

Emma Crapper 

4.0 11/06/19 Updated following consultation 
meeting 03/06/19 with 
Executive Directors and Leader. 

Emma Crapper 

 

 

Links and Dependencies 
Council Plan 
Strategic Dashboard 
Service Plans 

  

Page 6



PUBLIC 
 

3 
 

JOINT GUIDANCE ON APPRAISAL OF 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 
 
 

1. Introduction 

 
1.1 This guidance is intended for use by senior elected members and 

Executive Directors when agreeing a process for appraising the 
performance of an Executive Director.  The focus of this process 
should be on clarifying what the Executive Director is expected to 
achieve and deliver whilst identifying any continuing developmental 
needs which, if met, would maintain a high level of performance.  The 
process will also consider the application of the collective officer 
leadership operating model for the Council.  The process of setting 
objectives should be by agreement and the result should be to identify 
objectives which are relevant and challenging but achievable. 

 
1.2 The process should not become complex. At all times it needs to 

focus clearly on a few basic issues: what the Executive Director’s job 
is; what has been done well; what could have been done better; the 
success of the collective leadership model; the major issues over the 
next year; and what developmental needs the process clearly 
identifies. 
 

 
 

2. Responsibility for Appraisal 

 
2.1 The responsibility for appraising the Executive Director lies with the 

Leader of the Council utilising independent external advice. It is a 
contractual obligation on both the Executive Director and the 
employing council to engage in a regular process of appraisal. 

 
2.2 The management of the appraisal process for Executive Directors 

lies with the Director of Organisation Development and Policy.  This 
includes arranging the meetings, providing any necessary supporting 
information and sourcing external assistance for the process. 

 
2.3 Those conducting the appraisal need to bear in mind at all times that 

the Executive Director is employed by the council as a whole, not by 
the controlling group and is therefore required to serve all of the 
council. 

Page 7



PUBLIC 
 

4 
 

 
 
 
 

3. Aims of Appraisal 

 

• To identify and clarify the key objectives, priorities and targets of 
the council and appropriate timescales for their achievement 
over the next 12 months. 

• Agree what the Executive Director should personally achieve 
over the next twelve months and identify required standards of 
performance, in order to deliver the council’s key objectives, 
priorities and targets.  Wherever possible standards of 
performance should be expressed in ways which can be 
monitored objectively. 

• Discuss positive achievements over the past twelve months and 
identify reasons for good performance, including the Executive 
Directors contribution to the collective leadership model. 

• Discuss instances over the past twelve months where objectives 
have not been met, identifying the factors preventing the 
achievements of agreed goals. 

• Discuss developmental requirements. Each Executive Director 
will have strengths and weaknesses and the parties should 
identify the professional development necessary to equip the 
Executive Director with the requisite skills to meet the council’s 
objectives. The parties should be proactive and anticipate future 
developmental needs in the context of the council’s changing 
priorities. This discussion could lead to the design of a formal 
programme of continuous professional development (CPD). 
Equally this discussion may lead to agreement on changes to 
the working relationship between leading members and the 
Executive Director. It should not be assumed that it is only the 
Executive Director who may need to adjust his/her approach to 
the working relationship. 
 

 
3.1 Appraisal should be set in the context of the council’s objectives, 

priorities and targets, generally expressed in corporate or 
departmental plans.  

 
 
 

Page 8



PUBLIC 
 

5 
 

 
 
 
 

4. The Appraisal Cycle 

 
Performance Appraisal Review and Monitoring Timescales 

 
Formal annual appraisal meeting - to review 
progress against objectives at the end of the year 
and to set objectives for the forthcoming year  

April  

Informal six monthly review – To cover progress 
against objectives at six monthly point and to refine 
priority performance areas. 

September  

 
In addition to the formal review meetings set out above, there is an 
expectation that any concerns from either side would be raised during 
the course of the appraisal cycle. 
 

5. Key elements of the Appraisal Process 

 

• Continuous two-way monitoring of performance against 
objectives. 

• Preparation for an appraisal interview. 

• An appraisal interview where recent and current performance, 
feedback from stakeholders using 360 feedback process, future 
objectives and development needs are discussed. 

• Agreement on action required from either party to ensure 
required performance is achievable. 

• A continuing process of informal discussion regarding 
performance. 

 
The process is set out at Appendix 1. 

 
 
 

6. The Appraisal Interview and Afterwards 

 

• Both parties should be well informed and prepared for the 
interview. 

• The process should be two-way. 

Page 9



PUBLIC 
 

6 
 

• The interview should be free from interruptions and notes should 
be taken when necessary. 

• The parties should concentrate as far as possible on established 
facts rather than unsubstantiated opinions. 

• Targets which are realistic and capable of being monitored 
should be agreed. 

• Any agreed personal development plans should be implemented 
within the agreed timescale. 

• The Executive Director should be given a reasonable opportunity 
to correct any shortfalls in performance. 

• A date for the next review should be agreed. 
 
 

7. External Assistance 

 
7.1 External assistance in facilitating the appraisal process will be 

commissioned by the Director of Organisation Development and 
Policy, using an agreed specification to provide an independent 
perspective.  Any objections to the identified independent person 
must be raised, in writing, with the Director of Organisation 
Development and Policy and be well founded. 

 
 
 

8. Other Matters 

 
8.1 The detailed content of appraisal interviews should normally be 

treated as confidential to the participants, unless both parties agree 
that it would be helpful for the objectives agreed for the ensuing 
period to be shared more widely. However, it will be reported to the 
Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee that the 
appraisal interview has taken place. 

 
8.2 It should not be assumed that the process for appraising the 

Executive Director should be followed in precise detail for other staff. 
There is a fundamental difference between Elected Members 
appraising Executive Directors and managers appraising 
subordinates. The principles, nevertheless, are the same. 
 

 
 
 

Page 10



PUBLIC 
 

7 
 

Appendix 1 
 
Executive Director Appraisal Process 
 
Pre – Formal Appraisal Meeting 
 

• Director of Organisation Development and Policy commissions the 
external independent adviser to the process using an agreed 
specification.  Relevant paperwork and information provided to the 
external independent adviser. 

• Executive Directors given 28 days’ notice of formal appraisal 
meeting.  

• The external independent adviser seeks feedback on agreed 
criteria, developed in consultation with Director of Organisation 
Development  and Policy, in advance of the formal meeting from; 

- Leader  
- Executive Director  
- Other Executive Directors 
- All Cabinet Members 
- Leader of the Opposition 
- Direct Reports of Executive Director 

 
The feedback may be collated by face to face discussions or by 
completion of questionnaires and the method adopted will be 
agreed in advance.  The Director of Organisation Development 
and Policy will facilitate any further requests for information from 
the external independent person. 

 
The external independent person collates the feedback and shares, in 
writing, with the Leader and the individual Executive Director in advance 
of the formal appraisal meeting.   
 
Appraisal meeting – Collective 
 

• The external independent adviser leads a meeting of the Leader 
and Executive Directors to provide an overview of the 
effectiveness of the Councils collective officer leadership model, 
based on the stakeholder feedback as set out above, identifying 
strengths and weaknesses of the model.  A written report will be 
provided to the Leader and the Executive Directors following the 
meeting. 
 

 

Page 11



PUBLIC 
 

8 
 

 
Appraisal Meeting - Individual 
 

• The external independent adviser meets with the Leader 
individually to discuss the Executive Director performance against 
set objectives and identify potential new objectives for the coming 
cycle, taking into account the feedback from stakeholders as set 
out above. 

• The external independent adviser meets individually with the 
Executive Director to discuss performance against set objectives 
and identify potential new objectives for the coming cycle, taking 
into account the feedback from stakeholders as set out above. 

• The external independent adviser facilitates the appraisal meeting 
with the Leader and Executive Director to evaluate performance 
against set objectives from the previous 12 months and identify 
new objectives for the coming cycle.  

• The external independent person records the discussion. 
 
 
Post Appraisal Meeting 
 

• The external independent person provides a written record of the 
outcome of the individual Executive Director meeting which details 
performance against set objectives and the new objectives for the 
coming cycle and is shared with the Leader and individual 
Executive Director. 

•  A copy will be provided to the Director of Organisation 
Development and Policy to place on the Executive Director file. 

• Should significant performance issues through this process be 
identified, the Leader will seek advice from the Director of 
Organisation Development and Policy.   

Page 12



1 

 

PUBLIC                                                                       

 
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
APPOINTMENTS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE  

COMMITTEE 

 
24 June 2019 

 
Report of the Executive Director for Children’s Services 

 and 
 Director of Organisation Development and Policy 

 
 

APPLICATION FOR THE PAYMENT OF A MARKET SUPPLEMENT TO 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES CHILD PROTECTION SOCIAL WORKERS 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
For the Committee to approve the application to pay a Market Supplement to 
Children’s Services Child Protection Social Workers. 
 
2. Background Information  
 
Children’s Child Protection Social Workers (including Starting Point) are critical posts 
within the Council providing core statutory functions in relation to child in need, child 
protection and children in care. 
 
In 2018 the Council agreed a ‘growth bid’ which enabled children’s services to increase 
the number of Child Protection Social Workers in front line children’s teams. The aim 
of this was to strengthen our ability to achieve best outcomes for children by 
introducing a new social work team structure and reduced caseloads for staff.    
 
Since the implementation of the growth bid the actual number of established Social 
Workers in post has increased but not enough to embed the revised team structure as 
comprehensively or as consistently as required. As a result agency social workers 
have been increasingly relied upon to increase case allocation capacity and support 
the new team structures.  
 
There is a business imperative to recruit and retain social workers due to the statutory 
duty to protect children and the high level of regulation through OFSTED inspection of 
children’s services; the inspection regime provides a clear rationale to ensure that 
‘good’ outcomes are achieved for children and child protection services are adequately 
supported to do so by the Council. Leadership and management in the Council is an 
area OFSTED consider in ‘grading’ a Local Authority. 
 
Social workers have told us that the package of support Derbyshire offers is very good 
and important to them; but for some social workers the differential in the pay scales to 
other neighbouring LA’s has tipped the balance and they are prepared to take a risk 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



2 

 

and work elsewhere. It is expected that by improving our reward offering coupled with 
refining the understanding of the support package that we will attract and retain more 
social workers in Derbyshire. 
 
Section 4 and 5 of the attached Application for the Payment of a Market Supplement 
sets out the annual turnover rate across the workforce which has increased since 30 
April 2017 – 11.5% to 30 April 2019 – 18.6%.  Vacancy levels are 89.06fte (including 
Starting Point) at 30 April 2019, compared to 28.19fte (excluding Starting Point) at 30 
April 2018 and 24.92fte (excluding Starting Point) at 30 April 2017, with the increase 
in 2019 being due to the Growth Bid introduction in September 2018. Agency staff 
currently fill 65.5fte of the 89.06fte vacancies leaving net unfilled vacancies at 23.56fte.  
 
While the numbers of starters has increased from 31.2fte in the 12 month period to 30 
April 2017 to 49.3fte in the 12 month period to 30 April 2019, this increase has not 
been fast enough to meet the increasing turnover demands and fill the additional 70fte 
vacancies introduced by the Growth bid in 2018.  
 
Section 7 of the attached Application for the Payment of a Market Supplement sets 
out a comparison table of salary levels across the region. 
 
A Child Protection Social Worker Workforce Strategy is also being finalised which sets 
additional actions to improve recruitment and retention in the profession. This strategy 
addresses the following priorities and is supported by an Action Plan for 2019 and 
2020: 
 

• Recruitment 

• Reward 

• Social Worker Caseloads 

• Continuous Improvement 

• Career Development 
 
 
3. Summary of proposals 
 
Section 8 of the attached Application for the Payment of a Market Supplement 
proposes the following market supplements be paid. 
 

1. To pay a Market Supplement to Children’s Services Child Protection Social 
Workers at the following rates: 

 

• Grade 9 - £4,000pa 

• Grade 10 - £3,000pa 

• Grade 11 – £2,000pa 
 

2. To pay Grade 12 Practice Supervisors a minimum of point 29 (£37,344) of the 
Grade 12 (points 28 – 31 pay scale) in order to ensure that all Practice 
Supervisors are paid more than a Grade 11 Social Worker. 

 
 

Page 14



3 

 

If approved by the Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee then the 
proposals would be actioned with effect from 1 July 2019 for a period of two years, 
with a further review of market conditions taking place towards the end of the two year 
period when the new structure has been stabilised. 
 
Consideration has been given to alternatives to paying a market supplement but have 
been discounted, e.g. recruitment and retention payments. 
  
 
4. Legal Considerations 
 
There is currently a clear difficulty in recruiting to social work posts which is partly 
evidenced in the number of vacancies.  There is a tension between the level of payment 
required to recruit employees to these roles and the maintenance of the Council’s pay 
and grading structure based upon the Hay job evaluation scheme.   
 
The Council needs to ensure that the payment of a market supplement to this group of 
workers does not expose it to potential equal pay claims. The payment of a market 
supplement to this group of workers could result in a difference in the pay of men and 
women who are carrying out work which has been rated as equal value under the Hay 
scheme.   
 
The Council will have a defence against an equal pay claim if it can be shown that the 
difference in pay can be explained by a ‘material factor’ that does not involve direct or 
unjustified indirect sex discrimination; for example, in this case it would appear that the 
payment is necessary to enable the Council to carry out its statutory duties in relation to 
child protection and children in care. 
 
Market supplements should be time limited and subject to review to ensure that, at all 
times, it can be shown the market forces relied on remain the reason for any pay 
differential.  Typically in local government, the standard period for a review is up to 2 
years, subject to a review after 12 months.  An advantage of reviewing payments 
periodically is that they are easier to justify by way if a link with current market conditions.  
Time limiting the payments in this manner would assist in guarding against an equal pay 
challenge made on the basis that the payment was no longer justified.  If challenged the 
Council would need to satisfy a tribunal that any market supplement reflected a genuine 
need to pay an increased rate to solve a temporary recruitment problem and that problem 
was continuing thereby justifying the continuing enhanced rate of pay. 
 
Therefore, on balance, it would be justifiable for the supplement to be paid. However, the 
payment of a market supplement should only be a temporary solution to facilitate a wider 
strategy to support recruitment and retention in this area. 
 
 
5. Financial Considerations  
 
The attached Application for the Payment of a Market Supplement has potential cost 
impacts outlined in Section 8. 
 

Page 15



4 

 

Potentially the market supplement payments (including the additional Payments to 
Grade 12s) could raise annualised costs to £1,068,766 above budget. However, this 
needs to be considered against the current annualised overspend position of £983,624 
above budget i.e. £85,142 more. 
 
To ensure that expenditure is contained within the current allocated budget, a vacancy 
level of 27.75 fte Social Worker posts would be required maintaining this is not 
anticipated to significantly affect the trajectory of performance over the two years since 
some level of vacancy is always experienced. This will be closely monitored through 
budget monitoring by SMT, vacancy control and performance analysis.  
 

6. Legal and Human Rights Considerations  
 

Any final proposals will need to comply fully with the Council’s statutory and 
contractual duties. 
 

7. Other Considerations 
 

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been considered: 
prevention of crime & disorder, equality of opportunity, environmental, health, property, 

social value and transport considerations.   
 
 
8. Executive Director’s and Director’s Recommendation  
 

1. That the Committee approve the payment of the Market Supplement for a 
period of two years. 

 
 

 
Jane Parfrement 

Executive Director for Children’s Services 
 
 

Emma Crapper 
Director of Organisation Development and Policy 

 

Page 16



PUBLIC 

APPLICATION FOR THE PAYMENT OF A MARKET SUPPLEMENT  

POST TITLE:  Childrens Social Workers 

GRADE:  9-11     

SALARY:  £25,064 - £35,187 per annum (2019-20 pay rates) 

AREA/DIVISION:  Childrens Services Child Protection Social Workers 

Grades 9, 10, 11. (Plus resultant consequential point uplift for Grade 12 

Practice Supervisors) 

DEPARTMENT:  Children’s Services Department  

NEW SUPPLEMENT (DELETE AS APPLICABLE) 

Is this application to: 

Assist recruitment to a vacant post(s) - yes 

To retain existing employees – yes 

Information and analysis 

1. Outline why this post is essential to the Council. 

Children’s Child Protection Social Workers (including Starting Point) are critical posts within 
the Council providing core statutory functions in relation to child protection and children in 
care. 
 
In 2018 the Council agreed a ‘growth bid’ which enabled children’s services to increase the 
number of Social Workers in front line children’s teams. The aim of this was to strengthen our 
ability to achieve best outcomes for children by introducing a new social work team structure 
and reduced caseloads for staff.    
 
Since the implementation of the growth bid the actual number of established Social Workers 
in post has increased but not enough to embed the revised team structure as comprehensively 
or as consistently as required. As a result agency social workers have been increasingly relied 
upon to support the new team structures.  
 
There is a business imperative due to the statutory duty to protect children and the high level 
of regulation through OFSTED inspection of children’s services; the inspection regime 
provides a clear rationale to ensure that ‘good’ outcomes are achieved for children and child 
protection services are adequately supported to do so by the council. Leadership and 
management in the Council is an area OFSTED consider in ‘grading’ a Local Authority.   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



2 

 

2. Please provide evidence that consideration has been given to the 
use of agency workers, contractors, private sector or other 
providers to undertake the work. This should include advantages 
and disadvantages. 
 

Childrens Services currently has approximately 60fte agency staff in place and is spending on 
average £71k per week on agency staffing.  On average a 1fte agency Social Worker is 
approximately £26,000pa more expensive than an employed Social Worker. 
 
Addtionally, the use of Agency staff can have an impact on the quality of work through 
inconsistency of practice.  Agency staff are able to leave at short notice causing disruption to 
the support for children and their families and additional work for employed colleagues to 
quickly pick up the case work. In addition, managers have duplication of effort in recruitment, 
reallocation  and risk management, liaising with agencies and managing the lack of continuity 
in casework.    
 
Consideration of alternatives to market supplement paymentts were made and subsequently 
discounted eg retention payments. The markert supplement is envisaged as a tool to meet 
both current retention and recruitment challenges. At the end of the two year period, once the 
structure has stabilised, a review to consider the ongoing use of retention payments would 
take place. 
 
 
 

3. Please provide evidence that consideration has been given to 
redesigning the job/structure to undertake the work in a different 
way 

In 2018 analysis of the changes in social work practice and required support to children and 
families for the future was undertaken and resulted in the Council agreeing a ‘growth bid’ to 
enable the remodelling of Childrens Social Work services to create smaller teams supported 
by new Practice Supervisors and additional social workers to sustain reduced, manageable 
caseloads. The current difficulty in recruitment and retention of social workers may mean that 
these important changes could be in jeopardy should Derbyshire County Council be unable to 
recruit and retain sufficient numbers of Social Workers, particularly in Amber Valley, Erewash, 
South Derbyshire and South Dales and North East and Bolsover. 

Managing complex child protection case work takes time and reflective considered practice. 
Social Workers need manageable caseloads to be able to provide a good standard of safe 
practice which leads to better outcomes for children compared to practice performed by Social 
Workers with large caseloads who are overloaded and more likely to miss crucial indicators of 
abuse or neglect. 

In order to ‘grow’ the number of social workers various routes into Social Work are being 
supported in Derbyshire:   

• Frontline (partnership arrangement with Government commissioned organisation);  

• Grow Your Own (a route for existing staff to become Social Workers delivered in 
partnership with Nottinghamshire City Council and Manchester Metropolitan 
University);  

• Step up to Social Work (Government Scheme which is a full time study programme, 
existing staff can be supported by providing extended unpaid leave to train to become 
a Social Worker, scheme is also open to external applicants) ; 

Page 18



3 

 

• Return to Social Work Practice (National initiative to encourage professionals to return 
to practice).   

Work is also under way to procure a provider for 14 Social Work Apprenticeships across the 
7 locality teams.   

The culmination of these schemes will provide additional qualified social workers in 
Derbyshire, but there is a time lag of between 6 months and 4 years before workers qualify 
from the different schemes. 

A Social Worker Recruitment and Retention working group was established in 2017 to 
consider all the issues in relation to growing the social work workforce. Over the last 3 years 
the differential between Derbyshire pay rates for social workers and those of other Local 
Authorities has become more apparent. Social workers require a good deal of support to 
ensure they are able to practice effectively and manage the resulting stress from child 
protection work. This being the case pay is not the only factor which motivates social workers 
to work in a particular Local Authority and Derbyshire is recognised for its effective support 
package, however there is a risk to Derbyshire that if salaries remain at the current levels, 
which are significantly lower than neighbouring authorities individuals who have been 
supported to train as a Social Workers will leave to work outside of Derbyshire County Council.  
Derbyshire has already begun to see this trend developing with more social workers choosing 
to leave for a higher salary offer. 
 
Roles within the Council are evaluated using the Hay job evaluation scheme which ensures a 
rank order that provides protection against equal pay claims.  Job evaluation roles restricts 
the Council’s ability to be able to adjust grades on the basis of market need, thus the 
application for a Children’s Services Child Protection Social Worker market supplement. 
  

Page 19



4 

 

4.& 5. Turnover rates and evidence from exit interview  
 
There are particularly significant challenges recruiting and retaining social workers across 
Derbyshire in child protection teams (particularly Amber Valley, Erewash, South Derbyshire 
and South Dales and North East and Bolsover) as shown by the vacancy rates and agency 
figures as at the end of April 2019: 
 

Children’s Services Child Protections Social Worker Establishment (Grade 9-11)  

Vacancies and Annual Turnover Rate as at 30 April 2019 

Locality/ 

Service C
u

rr
e

n
t 

E
st

a
b

li
sh

m
e

n
t*

 

(P
re

 G
ro

w
th

 B
id

 2
0

1
7

) 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 
 

V
a

ca
n

cy
 r

a
te

  

A
g

e
n

cy
 (

w
it

h
in

 

v
a

ca
n

ci
e

s)
 

A
g

e
n

cy
 W

o
rk

e
rs

 a
s 

%
 o

f 

S
W

 W
F

 (
w

it
h

in
 v

a
ca

n
cy

 

ra
te

) 

Annual Turnover Rate – Permanent Workforce 

T
u

rn
o

ve
r 

R
a

te
 

a
s 

a
t 

3
0

/0
4

/1
9

 

S
ta

rt
e

rs
 i

n
 y

e
a

r 

to
 3

0
/0

4
/1

9
 

T
u

rn
o

ve
r 

R
a

te
 

a
s 

a
t 

3
0

/0
4

/1
8

 

S
ta

rt
e

rs
 i

n
 y

e
a

r 

to
 3

0
/0

4
/1

8
 

T
u

rn
o

ve
r 

R
a

te
 

a
s 

a
t 

3
0

/0
4

/1
7

 

S
ta

rt
e

rs
 i

n
 y

e
a

r 

to
 3

0
/0

4
/1

7
 

High Peak 

(HP) 

39.2 

(27.8) 2.0 5.10% 3.0 7.65% 

 

33.3% 

 

8.7 

 

13.5% 

 

8 15.9% 

 

6.1 

Chesterfield 

(CHE)  

42.6 

(32.1) 4.5 10.56% 0.0 0.00% 

 

8.30% 

 

9.0 

 

13.2% 

 

9.0 15.1% 

 

2.6 

NE/Bolsover 

(NE/B) 

50.2 

(39.3) 22.36 44.54% 13.0 25.90% 

 

42.4% 

 

12.0 

 

7.0% 

 

9.0 8.3% 

 

6.6 

Amber Valley 

(AV) 

34 

(25.5) 14.9 43.82% 11.0 32.35% 

 

15.8% 

 

7.0 

 

57.9% 

 

6.0 18.8% 

 

5.5 

Erewash 

(ERE) 

37 

(28.5) 19.6 52.97% 16.6 44.86% 

 

20.0% 

 

4.1 

 

26.3% 

 

4.0 16.7% 

 

3.0 

South 

Derbyshire 

(SD) 

34.7 

(23.5) 19.1 55.04% 13.9 40.06% 

 

 

21.4% 

 

 

5.0 

 

 

8.0% 

 

 

2.0 10.7% 

 

 

5.6 

Disability 

Services (DS) 

    22.5 

(13.5) 4.6 20.44% 6.0 26.67% 

 

 

0.0% 

 

 

3.5 

 

 

5.9% 

 

 

1.0 6.5% 

 

 

    2.0 

Starting Point 

8.1 

(n/a) 2.0 24.70% 2.0 24.70% 7.70% 0.0 25% 1.0 0.0% 0.0 

 

Total  

268.3 

(198.3) 89.06 32.15% 65.5 25.27% 

 

18.6% 

 

49.3 

 

19.6% 

 

38.4 11.5% 

 

31.2 

*the establishment does not differentiate by Grade (9,10,11) 
 
The annual turnover rate across Children’s Services workforce has increased since 30 April 
2017 – 11.5% to 30 April 2019 – 18.6%.  Vacancy levels are 89.06fte (including starting point) 
at 30 April 2019, compared to 28.19fte (excluding starting point) at 30 April 2018 and 24.92fte 
(excluding starting point) at 30 April 2017, with the increase in 2019 being due to the Growth 
Bid introduction in September 2018. Agency staff currently fill 65.5fte of the 89.06fte vacancies 
leaving net unfilled vacancies at 23.56fte.  
 
While the numbers of starters in the Children’s Service’s workforce has increased from 31.2fte 
in the 12 month period to 30 April 2017 to 49.3fte in the 12 month period to 30 April 2019, this 
increase has not been fast enough to meet the increasing turnover demands and fill the 
additional 70fte vacancies introduced by the Growth bid in 2018.   
 
The table below shows comparative data from Adult Care 

Page 20



5 

 

 
 

Adult Care Social Worker Headcount (Grade 9-11) 

Vacancies and Annual Turnover Rate as at 30 April 2019 

Locality/ 

Service C
u

rr
e

n
t 

E
st

a
b

li
sh

m
e

n
t 

 V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 
 

V
a

ca
n

cy
 r

a
te

  

A
g

e
n

cy
 (

w
it

h
in

 

v
a

ca
n

ci
e

s)
 

A
g

e
n

cy
 W

o
rk

e
rs

 a
s 

%
 o

f 

S
W

 W
F

 (
w

it
h

in
 v

a
ca

n
cy

 

ra
te

) 

Annual Turnover Rate – Permanent Workforce  

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
R

a
te

 

a
s 

a
t 

3
0

/0
4

/1
9

 

S
ta

rt
e

rs
 i

n
 y

e
a

r 

to
 3

0
/0

4
/1

9
 

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
R

a
te

 

a
s 

a
t 

3
0

/0
4

/1
8

 

S
ta

rt
e

rs
 i

n
 y

e
a

r 

to
 3

0
/0

4
/1

8
 

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
R

a
te

 

a
s 

a
t 

3
0

/0
4

/1
7

 

S
ta

rt
e

rs
 i

n
 y

e
a

r 

to
 3

0
/0

4
/1

7
 

High Peak 

(HP) 20.93 1.00 4.77% 0.0 0.0% 

 

n/a 4.03 n/a 2.85 n/a 1.80 

Chesterfield 

(CHE)  22.42 2.90 12.93% 5.0 22.30% n/a 4.00 n/a 6.00 n/a 1.80 

NE/Bolsover 

(NE/B) 41.43 3.31 7.98% 0.0 0.0% n/a 7.80 n/a 11.80 n/a 4.50 

Amber Valley 

(AV) 21.78 3.50 16.07% 3.0 13.77% n/a 5.60 n/a 5.80 n/a - 

Erewash 

(ERE) 26.52 6.00 22.62% 0.0 0.0% n/a 7.09 n/a 6.09 n/a 3.50 

South 

Derbyshire 

(SD) 23.19 3.90 16.81% 0.0 0.0% n/a 5.80 n/a 5.20 n/a 4.80 

Mental 

Health 42.55 2.09 4.91% 0.0 0.0% n/a 

 

16.09 n/a 

 

10.20 n/a 

   

  5.00 

Hospitals 15.60 2.00 12.82% 0.0 0.0% n/a 5.00 n/a 2.00 n/a 1.00 

Direct Care 2.00 0.50 25.00% 0.0 0.0% n/a 1.50 n/a - n/a - 

Prevention 5.00 1.00 20.00% 0.0 0.0% n/a 2.00 n/a 1.00 n/a 2.00 

Learning 

Disability and 

Deaf Services 11.30 3.50 30.97% 0.0 0.0% n/a 3.00 n/a 0.50 n/a 3.00 

Total  232.72 29.7 12.7% 8.0 

 

3.3% 

 

7.8% 

 

61.91 

 

12.0% 

 

51.44 5.8% 

 

27.40 

 
 
It can be seen from comparing Children’s Service’s data with Adult Care that at 30 April: 
 

• The vacancy rate of Children’s Services was 32.15% while Adult Services was 12.7%. 

• The turnover rate of Children’s Services was 18.6% on an establishment of 268.3fte 
while Adult Services was 7.8% on an establishment of 232.72fte. 

• Children’s Services utilised 65.5fte agency workers while Adult Services utilised 8fte 
agency workers. 

• Children’s Services highest vacancies occurred in North East Derbyshire and Bolsover 
(22.36fte) while Adults Services highest vacancies occurred in Erewash (6ffte) 

 
 
  

Page 21



6 

 

Staff Stability 
 

 

Child Protection Social Workers  

 

Adult Care Social Workers 

 

Period of 

Employment as SW 

at DCC 

Percentage of 

workforce 

Cumulative 

Percentage of 

the workforce 

Percentage of 

workforce 

Cumulative 

Percentage of 

the workforce 

Up to 1 year 30.9% 30.9%  27.0% 27.0%

1 to 2 years 21.4% 52.3% 24.0% 51.0%

2 to 4 years 21.3% 73.6% 18.0% 69.0%

4 to 6 years 9.1% 82.7% 8.0% 77.0%

6 to 10 years 5.0% 87.7% 9.0% 86.0%

10 to 15 years 9.6% 97.3% 9.0% 95.0%

15 to 20 years 2.1% 99.4% 3.0% 98.0%

20 to 25 years 0.6% 100.0% 1.0% 99.0%

25 years+ 0.0% 0.0% 1.0% 100.0%

Total 100.0%. 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

 
It can be seen that in Children’s Services 30.9% of the workforce have less than 1 years’ 
service, 52.3% of the workforce have less than 2 years’ service, and that 73.6% of the 
workforce have less than 4 years’ service.  
 
As this particular workforce is highly skilled and regulated increasing workforce stability should 

benefit of the outcomes of children’s casework as having one continuous social worker dealing 

with a case from start to finish is generally beneficial. 

 
Feedback from exit interviews and new social workers demonstrates that the relatively low 
pay level in Derbyshire is currently the biggest barrier to retention and recruitment to the 
vacant roles within the establishment. Many social workers leave following obtaining a role 
and completing less than 4 years’ service.  
 
A secondary retention issue is the pressure on the workforce in operating with large vacancies 
within the teams which is causing upward pressure on caseload levels. 
 
 
 

6. Number and quality of responses to job advertisements 

Since the Council’s online Recruit system went live in August 2018, 24 Child Protection Social 
Worker adverts have been placed, resulting in 213 applications.  The response rate to adverts 
has been varied, ranging between 0 and 26 per advert, with an average of 9 applications per 
advert. 

Page 22



7 

 

 
Some (approximately 4) Social Workers who have been offered roles have subsequently 
turned down the offer as they have secured higher paid jobs elsewhere. 
 
 

7.    Verification of pay or terms and conditions differential between    

the Council and the market 

 Salary 
Range: 
Grade 9  
(Level 1)  

Salary 
Range: 
Grade 10 
(Level 2) 

Salary 
Range: 
Grade 11 
(Level 3) 

Retention or other 
Pay Schemes (if 
applicable) 

Non-pay 
initiatives 

Derbyshire 
County Council 

£26,890 
 

£27,914-
£30,980  
 
(accelerated 
pay 
progression 
£29,957) 

£32,032-
£35,187  
 
(accelerated 
pay 
progression 
£33,084) 

Accelerated pay 
progression (Locality 
& Disability Teams)  
 
 

 

Derby City 
Council  

£32,233 - 
£36,153 

£37,107 - £39,961   

Nottinghamshire 
County Council 

£26,999 - 
£31,371 

£31,371 - £35,934 Retention payments 
in targeted hard to 
retain teams (excl. 
NQSW): 
£1K after 6 months 
£1K after 1 year 
£3 after 2 years 
£4K after 3 years 

mobile working; 
transfer scheme; 
CPD package; 
options to enhance 
pay by becoming a 
Practice 
Educator/ASYE 
Mentor  

Nottingham City 
Council 

£25,295 - 
£26,999  

£28,785 - 
£30,507 

£32,878 -
£34,788 

Market Supplements: 
Up to £1,633-£1,963 
(for L2 & L3 
respectively)  

 

Leicestershire 
County Council 

£26,397 £27,387 -
£30,762 

£34,599 -
£37,107 

Market Supplements 
paid – no details 

 

Sheffield City 
Council (top of 
grades) 

£33,799 £33,799 £37,849   

Rotherham 
Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

£29,909 £33,136 £37,107   

Comparators 
top of the scale 
Mean  

£30,771 £32,780 £37,124   

Difference - 
DCC top salary 
and 
Comparator 
Mean 

-£3,881 -£1,800 -£1,937   

 
For DCC Grade 10 and Grade 11 Social Workers it can be seen that Derby City Council, 
Nottingham County Council, Leicestershire County Council, Sheffield City and Rotherham 
Metropolitan Borough Council have higher starting or top end salaries. As these employers 
surround Derbyshire and are within an easy commute the impact of these salary levels means 
that potential Social Work candidates and existing staff are migrating to these employers. 
 
 

Page 23



8 

 

 
 

8. Amount of market supplement to be paid 

Please note that all supplements are quoted as gross payments and that 

tax, and national insurance deductions would be made. The supplements 

are pensionable. 

Market supplements paid to Child Protection Grade 9, 10 and 11 Social Workers (and 

consequential point uplift for Grade 12 Practice Supervisors) 

It is proposed to make the following market supplement payments (and consequential point 
uplift for Grade 12 Practice Supervisors) for a period of two years with effect from 1 July 2019: 
 

• Child Protection Grade 9 - £4,000 based upon comparison to the comparator’s mean  

• Child Protection Grade 10 - £3,000 based upon comparison to the comparator’s mean 
but also particularly taking account of Rotherham and Sheffield’s pay scales. 

• Child Protection Grade 11 - £2,000 based upon comparison to the comparator’s mean 
 
and to  
 

• Pay all grade 12 Practice Supervisors at minimum of point 29 (£37,344pa) to ensure 
that there is a small differential between Social Workers at the top of grade 11 with 
market supplement (£37,187pa) and Practice Supervisors at point 29. 

 
The proposal to pay above the average mean difference at Grade 10 is due to a) the current 
low numbers of Grade 10s generally across the County, b) the impact that other LA’s 
particularly Rotherham and Sheffield have had on turnover in North East and Bolsover, and c) 
that the rate of loss of Grade 10’s is greater than in other grades. Derbyshire have invested in 
training social workers at the start of their career only to lose them at a point when child 
protection cases can be allocated in light of their experience level. 
 
 
These payments would be per 1fte and paid pro-rata for any part-time (and relief staff). 
 
Table showing impact at each salary pay point: 
 

Existing Salary Scales 
(2019-20) 

Market Supplement 
Amount * 

Total with Market Supplements 

Grade 
9 

16  £25,064 No longer used for frontline child protection Social Workers  

17  £25,673 

18  £26,282 

19  £26,890 £4,000 £30,890 

Grade 
10 

20  (£27,914) n/a n/a 

21  (£28,935) n/a n/a 

22  £29,957 £3,000 £32,957 

23  £30,980 £3,000 £33,980 

Grade 
11 

24  £32,032 n/a n/a 

25  £33,084 £2,000 £35,084 

26  £34,135 £2,000 £36,135 

27  £35,187 £2,000 £37,187 

28  £36,266 n/a   

Page 24



9 

 

Grade 
12 

29  £37,344 n/a  Propose to use pt 29 as a minimum salary 
for Practice Supervisors in frontline Child 
Protection teams 

30  £38,424 n/a  

31  £39,503 n/a  

*Market Supplements are all pro-rated for part-time staff 
 
 
Current Cost Estimate 
 
Current costs £m 
Grade 9  - 61.03fte @ £26,890 1.641 
Grade 10  - 38.95fte @ £30,980 1.207 
Grade 11 – 79.27fte @ £35,187 2.789 
Total 5.637 
On Costs (24.33%) 1.371 
Annualised Total 7.008 
65.5fte agency workers @ (annualised cost £65,797) * 4.310 
  
Annualised Total of existing model 11.318 
  

 
* This is £1.724m more than is budgeted, for this number of Social Workers. 
 
The current budget allocation for Child Protection Social Workers & Starting Point Social 
workers including on costs at 24.33% is £10.335m.  The current estimated spend as detailed 
above of £11.318m would exceed this budget by £0.983m over a 12 month period. This is not 
sustainable financially and is part of the reason for the proposed market supplements, set out 
below. 
 
Costs of Proposed Supplements 
 
Grade Market 

Supplement 
Existing Roles £m 

Grade 9 Market Supplement Payments 61.03fte @ £4,000 0.244 
Grade 10 Market Supplement Payments 38.95fte @ £3,000 0.117 
Grade 11 Market Supplement Payments 79.27fte @ £2,000 0.159 
Grade 12:  Increase salaries for 20.5fte on pay point 28 to pay point 29 
@ cost of £1,078 

0.022 

Total 0.542 
  
Vacant Roles (89.06fte SW)  
Grade 9 (assume 40fte @ £4,000) 0.160 
Grade 10 (assume at 22fte @ £3,000) 0.066 
Grade 11  (assume 27.06fte @ £2,000)   0.054 
  
Vacant Roles (3.5fte PS)  
Grade 12 (3.5fte @ increased cost of £1,078) 0.004 
  
Total 0.284 
  
Total Cost excluding on costs 0.826 
On Costs at 24.33% 0.201 
Total Cost 1.027 

 

Page 25



10 

 

Estimated costs of full establishment (268.31fte) 
 
 £m 
current salaries  
Grade 9: 101.03fte @£26,890 2.717 
Grade 10: 60.95te @ £30,980 1.888 
Grade 11:  106.33fte@ £35,187 3.741 
Total 8.346 
On Cost (24.33%) 2.031 
Total of the establishment without market supplements 10.377 
  
Total Cost of full establishment including supplements 11.404 

 
 
The establishment as set out above along with the estimated cost of the proposed market 
supplement would take the total estimated spend to £11.404m, £1.069m over the current 
budget.  However this assumes a 0% vacancy rate which is highly unlikely in the current 
environment and has never previously been achieved in Derbyshire or nationally. 
  
To ensure that expenditure is contained within the current allocated budget, a vacancy level 

of 27.75 fte Social Worker posts would be required maintaining this is not anticipated to 

significantly affect the trajectory of performance over the two years since some level of 

vacancy is always experienced. This will be closely monitored through budget monitoring by 

SMT, vacancy control and performance analysis.  

This would still require all agency staff to be replaced by DCC employed Social Workers, which 
would also provide a stable workforce and better outcomes for children. 
 

9. Likely effectiveness of market supplement  

The market supplement will ensure Social Worker pay is closer to the local comparators mean 
average. 
 
Partnership working with other local authorities across the region has taken place to cap the 
rate at which agency workers are paid. 
 
The Council currently has 89.06fte Social Worker vacancies in Child Protection and Starting 
Point combined. This level of vacancies has been generally constant since the Growth Bid 
structure took effect in September 2018. 
 
The comparison with other local Social Work salary levels shows that Derbyshire County 
Council has relatively lower salary levels. In addition, feedback from Social Workers who leave 
Derbyshire County Council suggests that a large proportion do so to earn more money with 
other employers. 
 
This market supplement is likely to be effective in helping recruit to vacancies and retain 
existing Social Workers. 
 

10. Analysis of the likely impact of market supplement 

The purpose of this market supplement is to increase the level of pay of Child Protection Social 
Workers at Grade 9, 10 and 11 in order to recruit to the 87.06fte vacancies and retain existing 
staff, so that the overall workforce profile moves closer to the Social Worker establishment 

Page 26



11 

 

required, thus reducing the current agency spend and ensuring better outcomes for the 
children of Derbyshire. 
 
In terms of impact on other employees: 
 
Social Workers not working in Child Protection in Childrens Services – Childrens’ 
Services has other Social Workers not working in Child Protection eg working in Fostering and 
Adoption. Generally, fostering and adoption work is seen as less emotionally demanding than 
Child Protection work. This means that a number of Social Workers have a preference for 
working in Adoption and Fostering over Child Protection work. However, the introduction of 
this supplement could mean that those non-Child Protection Social Workers wish to transfer 
to Child Protection roles. If this did prove to be the case then recruitment into Fostering and 
Adoption roles is easier than into Child Protection roles and it is not envisaged that securing 
replacement adoption and fostering social workers will be a difficulty. 
 
Social Workers at Grade 9, 10 and 11 in Adult Care – these employees work to the same 
Job Profile as Children’s Services Social Workers and have the same job Grades ie Grade 9, 
10 and 11. Adult Care have categories of Social Workers who are likely to respond to changes 
to remuneration such as this and therefore need to be included in any considerations. 
 
Other roles at Grade 9, 10 and 11 across the Council – All jobs at these grades have been 
rated through job evaluation as equivalent and therefore any additional payments to one 
particular group could lead to challenge. The Council has a low pay line and increasing the 
whole pay line is not affordable and would impact the whole pay structure and not just be 
isolated to these grades. Any risk is reduced if the Council can clearly evidence the rationale 
for introducing a market supplement.  
 
 
Practice Supervisors at Grade 12 in Children’s Services – This market supplement is an 
interim measure to meet the immediate market challenges of Social Worker Recruitment and 
Retention. A payment of £2,000 will mean that a Social Worker at the top of Grade 11 could 
receive total payments of £37,187pa which would be the equivalent of between point 28 (the 
lowest point)  and point 29 in the Grade 12 salary scale.  In order to address this issue, it is 
proposed that grade 12 Social Workers currently on the lowest point are increased to the next 
point on the scale to ensure a differential.  This will result in only a marginal difference in salary 
between Social Workers on the top of grade 11 and Practice Supervisors and will therefore 
require sensitive communication to Practice Supervisors.   
 
This market supplement does not address the underlying low pay line issue but does seek to 
increase their pay in line with the employment market conditions for Children Protection Social 
Workers to increase the capability of DCC to recruit and retain them which is considered a 
legitimate business need.   
 
 

11. Legal Considerations 

This additional payment is proposed for a predominantly female group of employees and so may 
give rise to equal pay concerns.  The need to pay the market supplement should be balanced 
against the difficulties in recruiting to these roles and the need for the Council to meet its statutory 
obligations to provide this service.  Therefore, on balance, it would be reasonable for the 
supplement to be paid to support the recruitment process.  
 

 
 

Page 27



PUBLIC 

Children’s Services Child Protection Social Workers Workforce Strategy 2019 - 2020 

 
The Purpose of the Strategy 
 
The purpose of the strategy is to set out Derbyshire’s approach to recruiting and retaining 
Children’s Services Child Protection Social Workers. 
 
Our employee value proposition for Social Workers includes: 
 

• A great professional training and development offering 

• Supportive team-working approach 

• Competitive pay levels 

• Practice Supervisors to coach on professional practice 

• Working with an appropriately size and manageable caseload 

• A career progression route 

• Support with HCPC registration 

• Flexitime working  

• Free parking, Cycle to Work scheme 
  
The strategy has been developed under the leadership of Children Services Senior 
Management Team. 

 

The strategy seeks to ensure a fully resourced, sustainable, and highly qualified Child 
Protection workforce. The national challenge in recruiting and retaining qualified and 
experienced Child Protection Social Workers means that Derbyshire needs to set out how 
we intend to become the employer of choice in this region. 
 
Priority 1 – Recruitment 
 
To recruit sufficient permanent high quality staff with suitable qualifications and experience, 
in 2019 and 2020 we will: 
 

• Improve the clarity of the support and development package for social workers in 
Derbyshire in the recruitment advert information 

• Increase our exposure in the market place through considering social media 
advertising, professional bodies and other appropriate websites 

• Create and develop a Social Worker microsite 

• Consider working with a recruitment agency to create a Social Work recruitment 
campaign 

• Run Child Protection Social Work Recruitment Events eg Social Work Live 

• Create stronger partnerships with teaching partnerships and other Universities to 
encourage student placements in Derbyshire in order to create a pool of potential 
candidates 

• Continue with the Step Up, Grow Your Own and Frontline programmes 

• Encouraging agency staff to apply for Derbyshire social worker vacancies where 
appropriate and reduce conversion timescales without compromising the necessary 
recruitment checks 

• Young people will be part of the decision making process in selection processes 
where ever possible 

• Complete an end to end recruitment process review with defined Service Level 
Agreements and monitoring data, with consideration of centralised recruitment 
campaigns. 

 

Page 28



Priority 3 – Reward & Retention 
 
To reward and retain existing Social Workers by ensuring they have the right knowledge, 
skills and support to carry out their roles successfully, and by ensuring we are a competitive 
employer within the Social Worker market place we will: 
 

• Provide a quality induction process for new Social Workers 

• Provide a clear professional pathway for Social Workers 

• Conduct regular supervision 

• Provide bespoke professional systemic training 

• Seek approval to implement a Market Supplement to Grade 9, 10 and 11 Child 
Protection Social Workers, including an uplift for Grade 12 Social workers, 
reviewable after 2 years 

• Have appropriate caseloads for experience levels 

• Provide flexible working options 

• Maintain a culture of reflection and learning on staff feedback 

• Provide wellbeing and resilience support through the Council’s Wellbeing strategy 
 
Priority 4 – Caseload Management 
 
Sustaining manageable caseloads is key to ensuring good outcomes for children. In 
addition, it is important that Social Workers feel that their caseloads are manageable in order 
to help retention. To ensure sustainable levels of caseloads we will: 
 

• Allocate cases based on experience of the worker 

• Reduce turnover to provide consistency in casework 

• Manage processes to ‘step down’ cases where appropriate 

• Apply a caseload management system to reflect the number of cases allocated and 
complexity  

• Continue to offer regular, reflective good quality supervision 
 
Priority 5 – Continuous Improvement 
 
To ensure that learning is distributed we will: 
 

• Provide Practice Supervisors to support, challenge and coach Social Workers 

• Ensure that the auditing processes drive case management improvements within 
teams 

• Use Challenge Days to identify areas for development and share these with teams 
 
Priority 6 – Career Development 
 
To ensure there are clear pathways for career progression and support, we will: 
 

• Continue to offer a robust and supportive ASYE programme for newly qualified social 
workers 

• Continue to offer our Systemic Practice training and development programme 

• Continue to offer a varied programme of staff development 

• Support social workers progressing through our grade structure 

• Develop a Social Work Apprenticeship route into the Derbyshire social work 
workforce 

 
 

Page 29



Quantitative Success Measures  

1. Number of Child Protection Social Workers recruited 

2. Reduction in Child Protection Social Worker agency numbers  

3. Reduction in Child Protection Social Workers turnover rate 

4. Reduction in CP SW caseload 

5. ASYE completion rates 

6. Systemic Practice completion rates 

7. Audit and performance outcomes 

Qualitative Success Measures 

1. Staff feedback including exit interviews 

2. Feedback from children, parents and carers 

3. Audit outcomes 

4. Initial child protection case conference, case reviews and case closure  

Page 30



Delivering Derbyshire’s Children’s Services Child Protection Social Workers 

Recruitment and Retention Strategy Priorities 2019 - 2020 

Action Plan 
 
Action Timescale Lead Officer Status 
Grade 10 Child Protection Social 
Workers start at point 22 - 
£29,957pa 

  Completed 

Grade 11 Child Protection Social 
Workers start at point 25 - 
£33,084pa 

  Completed 

Social Worker Recruitment 
Project Officer 12mFTC 
appointed funded from Growth 
Bid 

April 2019 HR Business 
Partner (CS) 

Completed 

Enhance Grade 9 Social 
Workers salary to top of Grade 9 
Scale £26,890pa 

May 2019 Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

Completed 

    

Priority 1 – Recruitment    
Increase our exposure in the 
market place through considering 
social media advertising, 
professional bodies and other 
appropriate websites 
 

• Regular sponsored posts 
on all social media sites 
including Facebook, 
Twitter and LinkedIn 

• all major job board sites 
including Indeed, Reed, 
Jobsite and Monster (our 
competitors all have jobs 
on these platforms and 
this is where the majority 
of candidates will go to 
look for jobs). 

• Job posts on relevant 
social work 
sites/publications such 
as BASW and 
Community Care 

On-going 
expectation 

Social Worker 
Recruitment 
Project Officer 

Commenced 

Create and develop a Social 
Worker microsite 

The webpage would set out: 

• DCC’s Child Protection 
context 

• Sells Derbyshire as a 
place to live and work 

• CPD opportunities 

• Staff benefits 

• Case studies of DCC 
Social Workers 

• Job vacancies 

October 
2019 

Social Worker 
Recruitment 
Project Officer 

 

Page 31



Action Timescale Lead Officer Status 
Consider working with a 
recruitment agency to create a 
Social Work recruitment 
campaign (this could include 
work on developing a Microsite 
for recruitment purposes). 
 

May 2019 Social Worker 
Recruitment 
Project Officer 

Consideration of appointing an 
agency for Erewash Locality 
as a pilot has commenced 
with some procurement issues 
needing to be clarified. When 
appointed an agency would be 
paid for attracting appointable 
candidates and/or on 
appointment. 
 

Run Child Protection Social Work 
Recruitment Events eg Social 
Work Live 

• DCC’s Child Protection 
context 
• Sells Derbyshire as a 
place to live and work 
• CPD opportunities 
• Staff benefits 
• Case studies of DCC 
Social Workers 
• Job vacancies 

 

June 2019 Social Worker 
Recruitment 
Project Officer 

 

Create stronger partnerships with 
teaching partnerships and other 
Universities to encourage 
student placements at 
Derbyshire in order to create a 
pool of potential candidates 

On-going 
expectation 

Social Worker 
Recruitment 
Project Officer 

Currently in teaching 
partnerships with the 
University of Nottingham, 
Nottingham Trent and the 
University of Derby. As part of 
this partnership, we offer 
student placements and 
receive CPD and guest 
lecturing opportunities in 
return.  

 

Meetings have taken place 
with the University of 
Sheffield, Sheffield Hallam, 
the University of Nottingham, 
the University of Derby, 
Manchester Met and the 
University of Manchester. The 
aim of the meetings is to 
discuss and plan the following: 

 

• DCC to provide 

placements for final 

year students. 

• DCC information 

sessions with SW 

students re 

placements and 

careers at Derbyshire.  

• University workshops 

and CPD for our 

social workers.  

• Guest Lecturing. 

Page 32



Action Timescale Lead Officer Status 
• Students completing 

research at 

Derbyshire. 

• Understanding issues 

within DCC and 

amending the 

curriculum to address 

these.  

• Attendance at open 

days and career fairs. 

Continue with the Step Up, Grow 
Your Own and Frontline 
programmes 

On-going 
expectation 

Principal Social 
Worker 

Established 

Encourage agency staff to apply 
for Derbyshire vacancies and 
student placements where 

appropriate.  
To include: 

• Identifying those to be 
approached 

• Employment marketing 
workshop fully explaining 
benefits of employment 
including: salary, 
pension provision, 
annual leave entitlement, 
flexi-time and other 
employment benefits 

• Refining the interview 
process to include 
central and localised 
recruitment 

• Full recruitment checks 

• Buddying/mentor 
programme 

On-going 
expectation 

Heads of 
Service 

Commenced – some agency 
staff have already converted 
to DCC employees, process 
requires refinement 

Young people will be part of the 
decision making process in 
selection processes 

September 
2019 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

Already in place for higher 
level leadership posts. With 
high numbers of interviews 
and school commitments of 
children creativity is needed to 
enable involvement in more 
substantial recruitment 

Complete an end to end 
recruitment process review with 
defined Service Level 
Agreements and monitoring data, 
with consideration of centralised 
recruitment campaigns. 

June 2019 HR Business 
Partner (CS) 

 

Develop a Social Work 
Apprenticeship route into the 
Derbyshire social work workforce 
together with Adult Care 

September 
2019 

Principal Social 
Worker/HR 
Business 
Partner (CS) 

Apprenticeship provider 
procurement process being 
drafted 

Consider joint recruitment activity 
with Adult Care 

June 2019 HR Business 
Partner (CS) 

Joint meeting planned June 
2019 to partner on SW 
workforce strategy 

Priority 2 Reward & 
Retention 

   

Page 33



Action Timescale Lead Officer Status 
Implement market supplements 
to compete with neighbouring 
Council’s in the regional Social 
Worker employment market. 

June 2019 HR Business 
Partner (CS) 

Report to CMT 28 May 2019. 
If approved report to ACOS 
June 2019. 

Consider recruitment and 
retention payments 

May 2019 HR Business 
Partner (CS) 

No DCC procedure for 
recruitment and retention 
payments in place – option to 
be considered further at end 
of market supplement period if 
approved. 

Provide a quality induction 
process for new Social Workers 

On-going 
expectation 

Social Worker 
Recruitment 
Project Officer 

Current induction process 
requires refinement and 
consistent application  

Provide a clear professional 
pathway for Social Workers 

On-going 
expectation 

HR Business 
Partner (CS)/ 
Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

Established 

Conduct regular supervision On-going 
expectation 

Team 
Managers of 
social workers 

Well established 

Have appropriate caseloads for 
experience levels 

On-going 
expectation 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

Monitoring process 
established and swift 
response by leaders to rising 
levels as they occur 

Provide flexible working options On-going 
expectation 

Heads of 
Locality 

Established 

Maintain a culture of reflection 
and learning on staff feedback 

On-going 
expectation 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

Established 

Provide wellbeing and resilience 
support through the Council’s 
Wellbeing strategy 

June 2019 HR Business 
Partner (CS) 

 

Work with Adult Care colleagues 
to align retention and reward 
strategies 

June 2019 HR Business 
Partner (CS) 

Joint meeting planned June 
2019 to partner on SW 
workforce strategy 

Priority 3 – Caseload 
Management 

   

Allocate cases based on 
experience of the worker 

On-going 
expectation 

Heads of 
Locality 

Established  

Reducing turnover to provide 
consistency in casework to 10% 
by December 2019 

On-going 
expectation 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

Managing processes to ‘step 
down’ cases where appropriate 

On-going 
expectation 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

Established 

Priority 4 – Continuous 
Improvement 
 

   

Provide Practice Supervisors to 
support, challenge and coach 
Social Workers 

On-going 
expectation 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

Established 

Page 34



Action Timescale Lead Officer Status 
Ensure that the auditing 
processes drive case 
management improvements 
within teams and the Children’s 
Training Team 

On-going 
expectation 

Head of 
Service- 
Quality 
Assurance 

Development points from 
Audits is fed into the Early 
Help And Safeguarding 
Learning and Development 
Group 

Use Challenge Days to identify 
areas for development and share 
these with teams and the 
Children’s Training Team 

On-going 
expectation 

Head of 
Service- 
Quality 
Assurance 

Established 

Priority 5 – Career 
Development 

   

Continue to offer our ASYE 
programme 

On-going 
expectation 

Adult Care 
Learning and 
Development  

Established 
Monitoring completion rates 

Continue to offer our Systemic 
Practice programme 

On-going 
expectation 

Principal Social 
Worker 

Established 
Monitoring completion rates 

Continue to offer a varied 
programme of staff development 
defined by the Principal Social 
Worker  

May 2019 HR Business 
Partner (CS) 

Programme in place 
Reviewed through workforce 
planning process 

Work with Adult Care colleagues 
to provide coherent career 
pathways in social work  

June 2019 HR Business 
Partner (CS) 

Joint meeting planned June 
2019 to partner on SW 
workforce strategy 

Support social workers 
progressing through our grade 
structure 

On-going 
expectation 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

Established 

Monitoring    

Number of Child Protection 
Social Workers recruited 

Every 2 
months 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

Reduction in Child Protection 
Social Worker agency numbers 

Every 2 
months 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

Reduction in Child Protection 
Social Workers turnover rate to 
10% by December 2019. 

Every 2 
months 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

Reduction in CP SW caseload On-going 
expectation 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

Audit outcomes Every 2 
months 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

ASYE Completion Rates Every 2 
months 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

Systemic Practice Completion 
Rates 

Every 2 
months 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

Staff feedback including exit 
interviews 

Every 2 
months 

Service 
Director Early 

 

Page 35



Action Timescale Lead Officer Status 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

Feedback from children, parents 
and carers 

Every 2 
months 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

Initial child protection case 
conference, case reviews and 
case closure 

Every 2 
months 

Service 
Director Early 
Help and 
Safeguarding 

 

 

Page 36


	Agenda
	4 Appointments Panel Process for Officers of the Council covered by the Council's Constitution
	5 Executive Director Performance Appraisal
	6 Application for the payment of a Market Supplement to Children's Services Child Protection Social Workers

